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Dear Society Members,

Summer greetings to everyone and I hope you are all having 
a wonderful summer. Goodness it’s been unusually hot this year! 
I see a clear climate change from what I remember years ago. 
Take care of yourselves, and also of your pets. They need to stay 
comfortable too!

We have been working on some new ideas for additional 
events and hope to come up with something soon. We have the 
annual meeting and the triennial home tour, but members have 
been conveying that they would like another event during the 
year. We listened and we’re working on it.

Jill Kuyper and Debbie Farynowski have been on top of the 
usual processing of documents, but have also been helpful to 
new area businesses, such as Harvest Pizzeria on First. Many 
businesses ask us for help in displaying historical photos and the 
Archives Committee is always ready and willing to help. We are 
hopeful that the Stew Harrison’s wood slats we’ve been storing 
(with all sorts of memories carved within) will be of use in the 
very near future. The ultimate recycling!

The Avenue Breezeway has been updated. Please stop by and 
take a look at it. Thank you Ruthanne James and Jane Harris.

Wayne Carlson continues to monitor our website and provide 
updates. He also recently had to do a “fix”, as our website was 
hacked and needed some repairs. Wonder what this world is 
coming to when a not-for-profit Society website is invaded?! 
Wayne also does a wonderful job with our weekly column in This 
Week, “Moment in Time”. This has been a long time contribution! 
Also please check our Facebook page, which is monitored 
continuously by Trustee Emeritus Tom DeMaria. Tom also 
updates our showcase in the High School.

As always, I welcome your thoughts, suggestions or comments.

Sincerely, 
Tracy Liberatore, President

PRESIDENT’S 
  LETTER

The Society is busy planning our 
triennial historical Tour of Homes 
expected to be held in October 
2019. We are looking for GH/MC 
residents to volunteer to lead the 
following roles for the tour: 

Your strong interest in preserv-
ing and promoting our historically 
significant and beautiful homes is 
the most important qualification. 

Riggs, 2019 Tour of Homes Coor-
dinator, at karriggs@sbcglobal.net 
or 614-315-1770 for more informa-
tion about the 2019 Tour of Homes, 
the responsibilities associated with 
these roles, or to volunteer for a 
chair position. Chair persons will 
receive a complimentary ticket to 
the Tour of Homes and a compli-
mentary one-year membership to 
the Society. 

Seeking  
Chair Persons for 

Tour of Homes 

20192019
H OMESH OMES

OFOF

 

TOURTOUR

Dear Society Members,

Fall greetings to all!  What crazy weather we have had this summer. I 
always grow heirloom tomatoes and a lot of them didn’t make it due to the 
high temperatures, then severe rainfall, followed by more rain again. I cer-
tainly missed my summer porch evenings as well. It was simply too warm.

We are very excited for our Annual Meeting this year at the Grandview 
Theater & Drafthouse. It promises to be truly interesting as well as interac-
tive. Please refer to the Annual Meeting article within this newsletter.

As usual, we will be taking membership renewals at the registration table 
at our Annual Meeting. For your convenience, while we still accept check 
payments, we can also now process credit card payments for dues and other 
purchases.

We are discussing adding a few ideas for activities for the general member-
ship. We will have our Home Tour as usual, but we would very much like to 
have our members participate in new and different ideas. 

Be sure to stop by the Bank Block Breezeway (to the right of Stauf ’s on 
Grandview Avenue) and check out the Society’s new Fall display. Thank you 
to Ruthanne James and Jane Harris for their work on the breezeway!

For any of you who haven’t provided an email address for electronic receipt 
of our newsletter, please send it to:  ghmchs@gmail.com.  Since the Society 
has “Gone Green”, the newsletter is now only distributed electronically.  

As always, I welcome your thoughts, suggestions or comments.

Sincerely,

Tracy Liberatore, President

ANNUAL 
MEETING

Grandview Theater & 
Drafthouse

1247 Grandview Ave.

SUNDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2018
1:30-3:30 p.m.

Featured Talk:  
Franklinton: Where Columbus Began

First Person Presentation by Leslie 
Blankenship (Trustee, Franklinton 

Historical Society)

The Franklinton Historical Society 
was founded in 1993 by two 
women - one the president of the 
Franklinton Board of Trade and the 
other the president of Columbus’ first 
downtown Neighborhood Association 
and the Chair of the Franklinton 
Area Commission. They believed a 
knowledge of local history could instill 
in residents a pride of place and could 
rekindle a community’s spirit. 

At that time, Franklinton was known 
as “The Bottoms”, a topographical 
term that had become a derogatory 
nickname angering residents. These 
women recharged the image of the 
“near west side” into “Franklinton- 
the first settlement”, given it was 
established 15 years before Columbus 
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 O http://www.ghmchs.org/PDFs/VIEWPOINTSOct17.pdf
of Goodale Boulevard as an entrance to the GH/MC area and the great changes ongoing to the street’s business 

article, three additional Goodale businesses – two that are no longer there and one newcomer – are described 
here. Change is always good and the new and improved businesses on the Boulevard are certain to establish their 
own historic footprint. 

Goodale Boulevard: A Bastion for Businesses (Part II)
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W.W. Williams Grandview Yard

2

Brexton

Ross-
Willoughby Grandview 

Pool

1

While going through her late grandfather’s 
home, Linda Westfall found an old cast iron seal 
press that she remembered was always sitting 
on his desk. She and other grandchildren often 
used the lever press to emboss paper with a 
“The Arlington Country Club Co.” stamp. Curious 
to know more about the origins of the press, she 
found information on the club on our Society’s 

pages/aladdin.html, http://www.ghmchs.org/

Country Club opened in 1896 in now Marble 

Central Ohio’s first country club. 

home was located very near the Arlington Country Club. 

years; he told great stories of their escapades to his 
family, including Westfall. Westfall’s mother remembers 
visits to Gally’s home on Cambridge Ave. 

Seal presses became popular in the 1840s and by the 
1860s nearly every business entity, government agency, 

STAMP OF HISTORY

The Woodard press has a five-
point red star in the indented 
side body. 

Westfall believes her grand-
father Woodard may have ac-
quired the seal press as a gift 
from Gally or at an antique auc-

has donated the press to the Society’s archives. Stop 
by and see the press and other interesting artifacts at 

Woodard press 
donated to Society 
by Linda Westfall. 

Stamp from the 
Woodard seal press. 

Similar red star press,  
circa 1880 – 1920; 
triple beams coming 
out of the top and 
bottom of the star can 
be faintly seen on the 
Woodard press  
(www.swrubberstamp.
com/products/
antique-b005-4/) 

was founded. With new development finally coming 
to the peninsula, the Franklinton Historical Society is 
working to preserve and maintain the few remaining 
Franklinton 
heritage sites 
in the inner 
city.

Leslie 
Blankenship 
joined the 
Franklinton 
Historical 
Society in 1995 
to help plan the 1997 Franklinton 200th Anniversary 
Celebration “From Bison to Bicentennial”. She has 
been telling stories of Franklinton’s importance in the 
foundational history of the state and the nation ever 
since.   
Men from Franklinton founded Ohio’s capital 
Columbus. The footprint of Franklinton’s original plat 
was a land grant survey for a Revolutionary War veteran. 

Franklinton was the northernmost Virginia Military 
District settlement in 1797, the site of Franklin County’s 
first courthouse, the headquarters of the U.S. Army of 
the North West during the second war with Great Britain 
1812-1814, and the scene of a tragic flood in 1913 whose 
aftermath hampered Franklinton’s economic viability 
into modern times.   

Join us on October 
21 to hear more 
about our 
interesting across-
the-Scioto 
neighbor!  A short 
Society business 
meeting which is 
also open to the 
public will 
precede the 
featured talk.

Local Restaurants Tap Into 
Society’s Archives 

  
What’s old is new!  The Society recently provided 
materials from our archives to two area restaurants 
wanting to make a connection to GH/MC’s history. 

One of the newest restaurants in Grandview is Harvest 
Tavern & Pizzeria (Harvest) which replaced The Old 
Bag of Nails at 1099 W. First Avenue. The Grandview 
location was selected due to the relationship between 
Harvest owner Chris Crader and Tony Tanner, who is 
the owner of The Butcher and Grocer, located in the 
same shopping plaza. Bethany Lovell is also an owner of 
Harvest. Specialty cheeses and salamis are provided by 
Tanner for Harvest’s charcuterie board. Another reason 
for the Grandview location is the proximity to parks, 
schools, and homes. Wood-fired pizza is Harvest’s 
featured menu item, baked in a three way process – 
with baking stones, gas fire, and wood fire, the latter 

which needs to be tended to maintain 
the correct temperature. In addition 
to a full dining menu, Harvest offers a 
combination of craft beers, wine, and 
cocktails. 

The restaurant evokes a “harvest” 
theme by using farm photographs, 
wood interiors, and brick walls. Several 
graffiti-carved wood planks donated by 
the Society are displayed in a glass-
enclosed window at the back of the 
Harvest dining area. The planks came 
from the walls of a former restaurant landmark, Stew 
Harrison’s, which had been located at the northeast 
corner of West Fifth and Grandview Avenues, 
from 1932 to 1984.  Initials, college names, devotions 
to sweethearts, and other notes were carved into 
the planks by patrons dining at Stew Harrison’s.  In 
addition to the planks, the original ceiling from the Old 
Bag of Nails was kept by Harvest.  

1. Goodale Business Highlight

PAGE 3

 T
Goodale Blvd, had long-standing connections with 
GH/MC. 

were located on Spring and 
Third Streets in Columbus. 

was Horace Willoughby; the 
company had $100,000 in 
capital and a sales force of 

mine, and contractor supplies.

MidWest business executive 
with strong GH/MC ties; he eventually became R-W 

built and lived in a GH home on Westwood Ave from 
1915 to ~1923. He was a member of the Arlington 
Country Club, a riding club located in Marble Cliff, 
and enjoyed the sport of horse racing. 

The R-W company’s slogan in 1937 was “A neces-
sary adjunct to the industrial life of Central Ohio”; 
and at the time its advertised products included pipe, 
boiler tubes, steel, nails, wire rope, etc. 

to a new 35,600 sq. ft. building in Grandview at the 

the west of the Grandview Heights swimming pool. 
That year, company officers included James B. Ross, 

company 22 years, and whose father was the original 

Ross-Willoughby 
1400 Goodale

which was also being used to build St. John’s Arena 
at Ohio State University 
around the same time. 

inventory supply of over 
30,000 items and same day 

R-W product line added in 
1960 was the Starrett Co. 
hand measuring tools and 
precision instruments. 

Ron Cory, who joined the 
firm in 1978, notes “The com-
pany...had a sterling reputa-
tion, representing the very best manufacturers of 
industrial supplies and machine tools… Early on, 
a decision was made to computerize the inventory 
and order entry segments.... It was a forgone con-
clusion that …growth and profitability could not be 
met without a computer conversion…. On-site stores 
located within the customer’s plant, integrated supply 
strategies, customer specific inventory management 
programs propelled the company to be among the top 
100 distributors in the United States.”

it had sales of $90 million with 12 locations in Ohio 

sought buyers for R-W in 2002. 
The former R-W headquarters and warehouse 

building at 1400 Goodale was extensively renovated 
into a commercial office building in 2007. Two other 

commercial office buildings 
were also built on the for-
mer R-W property in 2007 

Current businesses residing 
in these buildings include 

-
teriors, and Healthlinx. 

Grandview Yard

 H. Willoughby, R-W 
President, often golfed 
with U.S. President 
Warren Harding. 

R-W Headquarters on Goodale Boulevard opened in 1955. 

Voluminous R-W  
Catalog Offered Every-
thing from A (Abrasives) 
to W (Wrenches). 

Former R-W Salespersons Still Gather Regularly (7/20/18 
photo provided by Jon DiSabato, second from left). 

Annual Meeting, Continued from Page 1

Planks from historic 
Stew Harrison’s restau-
rant similar to those on 
display in new Harvest.  

The Harrison House, dates from the early 1800s, 
and is one of the few original Franklinton 
structures still standing.

Featured Annual Meeting speaker, Leslie Blankenship 
(left), in period costume.   
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A second restaurant, 
Cap City Fine Diner 
and Bar (Cap City) 
located at 1299 
Olentangy River Road, 
re-opened on August 

9, 2018, after an extensive remodel and renovation. The 
restaurant has always had a retro vibe and offers “Classic 
Comfort Food Made Modern”.  In the recent renovation, 
Cap City strengthened their proximity and ties to nearby 
GH/MC communities. Six framed historical photos, 
provided by the Society, are now displayed in the main 
dining area of Cap City Grandview, including:  

• Grandview Theater 
• Historic Bank Block on Grandview Avenue 
• George Urlin, a founding GH citizen 
• Alice Urlin, George’s wife, also helped found GH 
• Urlin Mansion, their home on Goodale Boulevard, 

where Summit Chase sits today 
• 1919 Grandview Heights football team
 

We commend these restaurants for their attention to 
local history. Stop by and see the Society materials on 
display while enjoying wonderful food and drink. The 
Society has also worked with the management of The 
Avenue, Grandview Cafe, and the Knotty Pine to place 
historic photos in their venues.  

True Blue and Solid Gold – GH/MC 
Military Moms

 
In recognition of upcoming Veteran’s Day on Monday, 
November 12 (observed) and Grandview Height’s 
planned dedication of an addition to the city’s 
Memorial Park, historical background on the Blue 
Star Mother’s organization and local involvement is 
provided. 

On January 
23, 1942, in 
the midst of 
World War 
II (WWII), 
the Flint 
(MI) News 
Advertiser 
printed a 
notice asking 
mothers 

of servicemen to reply.  Over 1,000 responses to the 
notice were received, and on February 1, 1943, 300 
mothers met at the Durant Hotel in Flint. Captain 
George H. Maines, who conceived the idea for the 
group acted as chair of the first meeting. 

With so many responses, it was decided that the group 
should become a permanent organization, and on 
February 6, 1943, the organization was reported on 
the Congressional record. Chapters were formed in 
Michigan, Ohio, Wisconsin, New York, Pennsylvania, 
Oregon, California, Iowa and Washington. The 
organization was chartered by Congress in June, 1960.

The organization’s name came from a service banner 
designed in 1917 by World War I Army Captain 
Robert Queissner of the 5th Ohio Infantry.  A blue 
star was included in the middle for each family 
member actively serving in the Armed Forces.  Captain 
Queissner had two sons serving on the front lines in 

combat. At this time, they were joined by Laura Titus, whose son served in the Navy and died in Vietnam, and 
Mrs. William Dietz, whose husband died while serving in the Air Force.  Titus became the last of The Tri-Village 
Unit’s Blue Star Mothers, and she passed away in 2010 at the age of 91.  While a Blue Star mother, Titus 
helped organize and attended the annual Memorial Day Service held each year in Grandview. Even now, the 
Grandview Garden Club recognizes Titus and other Blue Star Mothers, and our veterans, with a wreath placed 
annually at Memorial Park.  And national and local chapters of Blue Star Mothers still exist elsewhere today, 
helping the nation’s armed forces in their continued service.  Insert Titus photo near this text.   
 
 

 
Notice from January 23, 1942, Flint (MI) News-Advertiser which initiated the Blue Star Mothers organization.   
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 H. Willoughby, R-W 
President, often golfed 
with U.S. President 
Warren Harding. 

R-W Headquarters on Goodale Boulevard opened in 1955. 

Voluminous R-W  
Catalog Offered Every-
thing from A (Abrasives) 
to W (Wrenches). 

Former R-W Salespersons Still Gather Regularly (7/20/18 
photo provided by Jon DiSabato, second from left). 

New Harvest Tavern & Pizzeria on First Avenue.

Former Stew Harrison’s restaurant at Fifth/
Grandview Avenues circa 1950s (now site of 
Winking Lizard restaurant).    

Photos displayed on wall near 
Cap City counter show Grandview 
Theater and Bank Block.

Remodeled Cap City counter with historical 
GH/MC photos displayed on wall to left.

Notice from January 23, 1942, Flint (MI) News-
Advertiser which initiated the Blue Star Mothers 
organization.  
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 A new business hoping to establish a long-
standing history on Goodale is Brexton. Brexton 
offers commercial development, construction, de-
velopment, renovation, and property management. 
Their primary focus is projects ranging from $1 to 
$25 million in central Ohio; past projects have in-

-
wide Children’s Orthopedic Center; and construction 

Brexton constructed a new building on Goodale 

headquarters. The original building at this site 
formerly housed a reTAGit resale store, a U-Haul 
rental center, and the Hubman Supply Co. janitorial 
supply business. Brexton had planned to simply 
remodel the existing building, however prohibitive 
renovation costs eliminated that plan. Most of the 
architectural features of the existing building had 
unfortunately been erased in previous remodeling 
efforts. Arched metal trusses and the original pine 
floor did remain however could not be salvaged. 

The new 115,000 sq. ft. building includes 

of the first floor so parking is not visible from the 

exterior. The building is set back from the sidewalk 
to improve walkability; Brexton plans to install a 
patio and landscaping in the front for improved 
aesthetics. The siding is metal for durability however 
designed to look like brick to better fit with GH/
MC building architecture. The corners at the top 
of the 5-story building are bumped out for added 
interest. Brexton moved their headquarters into the 
new building in 2018. 

committed to the GH/MC area and plans for Brexton 
to match the longevity of his Goodale business 
neighbors at their new headquarters. 

Construction of Tri-Village Self Storage and Brexton 
headquarters building. 

Former 24,000 sq. ft. building at 1123 Goodale was 
constructed in 1940 (photo circa 2010). 

1123 Goodale after demolition of original 1940 
building; Goodale Boulevard is at the bottom right, 
and the City of Columbus Dublin Road Water Plant 
is at the top left. 

2. Goodale Business Highlight

Brexton Construction, LLC  
(Brexton) 
1123 Goodale Boulevard 

Europe, and he – and others like him – hung the 
service banner in a window of their home. A Blue 
Star becomes a Gold Star if a service member is 
killed or dies while on active duty. The significance 
of the star colors is:  blue is for hope and pride; gold 
is for sacrifice for the cause of liberty and freedom.   

The Tri-Village Unit of the Blue Star Mothers was 
organized on October 6, 1943.  There were more 
than 80 members in the group with 50 active 
members.  Their purpose was to aid servicemen and 
women any way they could.  They sent Christmas 
cards, held dinners for servicemen, provided and 
served coffee and donuts at the USO, and helped 
needy families of servicemen at Christmas. They 
held bake sales at the Grandview Heights Public 
Library to support their efforts, and a Valentine’s 
Party for servicemen’s wives and sweethearts. The Tri-
Village Unit held their first Memorial Day service at the 
Honor Roll Board then located at the east end of the 
library.  Over 150 names were on the original board at 

the dedication. Names 
of those entering service 
after the erection of 
the Honor Roll were 
added periodically. The 
dedication service was 
held on March 26, 1944.  
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Laura Titus, co-founder of Tri Village Unit of Blue Star Mothers (photo 
circa 2000, Ken Frick Photography; Historical Society Archives)

Service banner deplayed at Ohio Senate building.
http://www.ohiostatehouse.org/about/capitol-square/senate-building

Crowd at 1948 dedication of original 
Memorial Park located on Grandview 
Library grounds (photo from Society Final 
Salute publication).

ViewPoints is an occasional publication of the GH/MCHS.

Melissa Rady

or to discuss photo contributions.


